
Traffic Advisory Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Traffic Advisory Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 17 January 2019

TIME: 11.15 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

The role of the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative. Decisions in respect of
items on the agenda will be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for
Planning & Sustainable Development, having considered the representations
made at this meeting.

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Minutes of meetings held on 6th December and 1st November 
2018. 

(Pages 1 - 8)

4  Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook - Proposed Waiting Restrictions - TRO 
2164. 

(Pages 9 - 24)

5  Darwell Avenue, Kirkman Avenue and Barton Road, Barton. (Pages 25 - 44)

6  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 

6th December 2018

Meeting commenced:    10.30 a.m.
         “           ended: 11.00 a.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development
– in the Chair

Councillors Burch, Dawson, K. Garrido, Hamilton, Hunt, Mashiter, Morris and
Warmisham

Item 4 – Stablefold/Lower Brook Lane, Worsley – TRO 2121
M. Housley – Local Resident
Councillor Turner – Ward Councillor

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed those present and outlined the procedure for the meeting.  He explained that the role of 
the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative and indicated that decisions in respect of the proposals to be 
considered would be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development, 
having considered the report along with the representations and comments made at this meeting.

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Clarke, Linden and McIntyre.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

It was agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 1st November 2018 would be included on the agenda 
for the next meeting.

4. STABLEFOLD/LOWER BROOK LANE, WORSLEY – TRO 2121

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed objections that had been 
received to a proposal, that had been put forward through the Worsley & Boothstown Community 
Committee, to introduce a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ (double yellow lines) 
on Stablefold and Lower Brook Lane in Worsley.  The intention of the proposal is to address concerns raised 
by the local community regarding parking in the area which was leading to access and safety issues.

In January 2018, following an initial site meeting in 2017, a consultation was undertaken with local residents 
and businesses.  The comments received were all evaluated carefully and a scheme was developed to 
introduce waiting restrictions to improve access and road safety in the area.

The TRO to introduce the waiting restrictions was advertised on the 29th July 2018 for a period of 21 days 
and during that period two objections were received via Legal Services which mainly related to the loss of 
parking facilities for residents and their visitors as a result of the proposed waiting restrictions, and also a 
fear that the restrictions would lead to parking being transferred to other areas in the vicinity.  A further four 
objections were received via email before and during the advertisement period, which related to concerns 
that the restrictions weren’t extensive enough, and made particular reference that they wanted the 
restrictions at the Stablefold/Lower Brook Lane junction extending further down Lower Brook Lane by 
approximately 7 metres as previously mentioned during the consultation by some residents.  There was one 
email/letter of support for the scheme.

Following consideration of the objections, including further site visits to understand site conditions, the 
members of the Highways Task Group have agreed that an amended scheme be proposed, as detailed in 
the report, which would achieve the objective of providing safe access for vehicles and pedestrians, but 
would reduce the lengths of double yellow lines and also amend the hours/days of operation of the proposed 
waiting restrictions on Lower Brook Lane to reduce the effects of residential parking requirements.

A local resident made representations to the Panel as follows –

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Traffic Advisory Panel – 6th December 2018 2

 Parking problems have been taking place on the streets concerned for many years and the parking 
situation is a problem throughout the local area.

 Parking on the pavement is causing access problems for pedestrians, wheelchair users and people with 
pushchairs.

 Double parking is causing access problems for refuse, delivery and emergency vehicles.
 Damage has been caused to a number of paving stones by vehicles being parked on the pavement.
 The junction of Stable Fold and Lower Brook Lane, as well as residents’ gardens and driveways, are 

often used as turning points.
 Parking problems in the area are currently exacerbated by the local car park being out of use.
 Instances that had involved people parking their cars in the area, travelling to the airport by taxi and 

leaving their car for numerous days whilst on holiday.
 Support for the amended proposal, however, further restrictions are required to address the problems 

that exist.

Councillor K. Garrido echoed the representations that had been made with regard to the parking problems in 
the area and expressed sympathy in respect of the inconsiderate behaviour that the residents had been 
required to endure over the years.  Councillor K. Garrido also acknowledged the need for parking provision 
for the local businesses in the area.  She expressed her support for the amended proposal as a starting point 
that is subject to review.

Councillor Turner concurred with the representations that had been made in relation to the parking situation 
in the area.  He expressed his support for the amended proposal, which although not ideal, needed to be 
considered in the larger context of the problems that exist and went some way towards addressing the 
concerns.  Councillor Turner agreed that the amended proposal should be a starting point that is subject to 
review.

Panel Members expressed general support in respect of the proposed amended scheme.

Councillor Antrobus indicated that, having considered the evidence presented, he was minded to approve 
the introduction of the amended scheme, as detailed in the report.  He also indicated that he would ask that 
the scheme be kept under review once implemented and its impact be monitored.

Page 2



TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 

1st November 2018

Meeting commenced:    11.55 a.m.
         “            ended:    12.55 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor Antrobus, Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development
– in the Chair

Councillors Burch, Clarke, Dawson, K. Garrido, Hamilton, Hunt, Mashiter,
McIntyre and Morris

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

The Chair welcomed those present and outlined the procedure for the meeting.  He explained that 
the role of the Traffic Advisory Panel is consultative and indicated that decisions in respect of the 
proposals to be considered would be made at a future Briefing of the Lead Member for Planning & 
Sustainable Development, having considered the report along with the representations and 
comments made at this meeting.

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Dickman, Linden and Warmisham.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 

The minutes of the meeting held on 4th October 2018 were agreed as a correct record.

4. PROPOSAL TO INTRODUCE NEW TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER LIMITED WAITING WITH
PERMIT HOLDERS PARKING RESTRICTION ON CHORLEY ROAD AND RESIDENTS’ 
PARKING AREAS ON BEECH STREET, BROOM STREET AND OGDEN STREET, SWINTON 
SOUTH, SALFORD ORDER 2018 (TRO 2131)

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place regarding a request from the 
Swinton & Pendlebury Highway Task Group to introduce a Limited Waiting Traffic Regulation 
Order on Chorley Road, as well as a subsequent request to introduce a Residents’ Parking Traffic 
Regulation Order on Beech Street, Broom Street and part of Ogden Street.

(a) Chorley Road TRO Ref: 2114

A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce limited waiting parking restrictions on Chorley Road 
had been formally consulted with the Traffic Management Unit on 22nd September 2017 and no 
objections were received from TMU members.  The TRO was legally advertised on 16th November 
2017 for 21 days.  This had resulted in 19 returns being received from businesses and residents 
(15 letters of objections received from 9 properties and 3 letters of support to the proposals). 
 
As some residents along this section had objected to the proposal, the Swinton and Pendlebury 
Highways Task Group had indicated that the limited waiting should proceed, subject to TAP 
approval, and that the residents and business premises be offered permits to park within the 
Swinton Zone B parking area which had Task Group approval to be extended to include Beech 
Street and Broom Street. 
 
(b) Beech Street, Broom Street and Ogden Street
 
A consultation exercise had been carried out on 15th November 2017 to seek the Beech Street, 
Broom Street and Ogden Street residents’ views on this proposal. This extension to an existing 
area wide residents’ parking permit scheme encompasses three additional streets and 

Page 3



Traffic Advisory Panel – 1st November 2018 2
approximately 74 properties.  A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO Ref - 2131) to introduce residents’ 
only parking restrictions on Beech Street, Broom Street & Ogden Street was formally consulted 
with the Traffic Management Unit on 4th December 2017 and no objections were received from 
TMU members.  A Traffic Regulation Order (TRO Ref - 2131) to introduce residents’ only parking 
restrictions on Beech Street, Broom Street was legally advertised on 14th June 2018.  Four 
objections were received from the three properties, which included a petition containing 104 
signatures from 67 households within the area. Chorley Road: 15 households (23 signatures) 
Beech Street:  14 households (18 signatures) Broom Street: 15 households (29 signatures) Ogden 
Street: 23 households (34 signatures) including signatures from four properties that are not 
included within the scheme area. 
 
Despite the findings of the initial informal consultation, it was acknowledged that there is a level of 
objection raised by the local community to this proposal.  Those objections had been taken into 
consideration by suggesting amendments to the proposal, for limited waiting parking restrictions to 
allow permit holders to utilise the bays on Chorley Road, as well as those in the adjacent side 
streets within the existing permit Zone B.  This would provide a turnover of parking spaces 
requested by the businesses on Chorley Road whilst minimising the impact for local residents.  
The details of the amendments to the proposal (Option 3) are provided within the report.

Members of the public in attendance made the following representations –

Objecting to the proposed amended scheme:

 Only residents of a particular street should be able to park on that street.
 The objections to the original proposed scheme should be overruled and the original scheme 

should be implemented.
 A terraced property in the area was in the process of being converted into flats, which was 

likely to further increase the number of vehicles parking in the area and should be taken into 
consideration.

Representations in support / seeking clarification in respect of the proposed amended scheme –

 The amended scheme (Option 3) reflected the representations that had been made in relation 
to the original scheme and was supported by the majority of those in attendance.

 Confusion that existed amongst residents due to the complex nature of the original proposal 
and them not having been made aware of the amended proposal.  

 Why parking on only one side of Chorley Road was being restructured - parking along both 
sides of the road should be consistent.  It was established that the other side of Chorley Road 
fell within a different zone and any changes would need to be considered separately.  

 Timings in respect of parking restrictions not being consistent between the various zones in the 
area.  It was established that the timings in respect of the proposed amended scheme were 
already determined due to the scheme being added to an existing traffic regulation order.

 Details were provided regarding the parking problems that were being caused by commuters 
and Council staff parking on residential streets in the area.  Reference was made to the need 
for a multi storey car park.

 The aim of the proposal being to strip out the all-day commuter parking in the area.
 The need for parking provision for small businesses in the area.

Councillor Fletcher referred to the need to balance the needs of businesses in the area with those 
of local residents, which Option 3 sought to accommodate.  She suggested that consideration of 
the proposed amended scheme be deferred in order to enable further consideration to be given to 
the amended proposal.  The Chair clarified that a way forward could be agreed today with a 
decision being taken at a future Lead Member Briefing.
 

Page 4



Traffic Advisory Panel – 1st November 2018 3
The Chair made reference to the parking schemes in the area having been initiated to address 
the problems that were being caused by long-stay, on-street parking.  He stated that City Council 
staff are encouraged to use public transport, however, are free to exercise their rights as road 
users.

The Chair summarised that there appeared to be broad agreement regarding the requirement for a 
scheme to address the issues being caused by long-stay parking by commuters, Council staff and 
other people in the area.  He stated that Option 3 appeared to present an appropriate way forward 
and he indicated that he was minded to approve that officers work towards the implementation of 
Option 3 – to amend the proposal for limited waiting parking restrictions to allow permit holders to 
utilise the bays on Chorley Road as well as those in the adjacent side streets within the existing 
permit Zone B.  In addition, the Chair requested that (a) the inconsistency regarding the timings of 
waiting restrictions in the area, and (b) the parking structure on the other side of Chorley Road, be 
reviewed with a view to ensuring a consistent approach.  The Chair also referred to the potential 
for a piece of land in the area to be used for parking by non-residents and requested that officers 
have discussions with the land owner to explore this possibility.

5. YEW STREET AND NORFOLK STREET, SALFORD

The Panel considered a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed five objections that had 
been received in relation to a proposal to introduce safety measures in response to a request from St. 
Sebastian’s RC Primary School on Norfolk Street and from St. Boniface RC Primary School on Yew 
Street to improve road safety in the area, particularly at school start and finish times when parking 
obstructs the road and generates collision concerns with school children.  A traffic management 
scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ Monday – Friday 8 am 
– 5 pm Traffic Regulation Order on Yew Street and Norfolk Street to cover the area considered 
appropriate by the Collision Investigation Team, as indicated on the attached legal schedule and plan 
in Appendices 1 and 2. The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Stopping on Entrance Markings’ 
order was legally advertised on 12th July 2018 for 21 days, during which time five objections were 
received.  The objections related to the impact on the availability of parking for residents and 
requested changing the hours of operation to peak times only and shortening the existing School Keep 
Clear marking to the minimum allowed to create more parking places.  No objections were received in 
respect of the proposals for Norfolk Street.

Following consideration of the objections, it was agreed that the hours of operation be changed to 
8:00am – 9:30am and 3:00pm – 4:30pm Monday to Friday on both entrances on Yew Street to cover 
the drop off and pick up times.  However, the length of the existing School Keep Clear marking would 
be the same as school advised that their pupils use both entrances.  The objection was maintained 
due to parking difficulties for residents in the area.  The scheme was reviewed again and it was agreed 
that the existing markings be shortened to the minimum of 25.56m and that the School Keep Clear 
marking be moved in a westerly direction to cover the school house.  In addition, to provide more 
space to park, it is recommended that the existing ‘No Waiting Monday to Friday 8.00am – 6.00pm 
restriction on the north side of Yew Street be reduced to help local residents, whilst still maintaining 
visibility at the junction with Grecian Street North.

There were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting in respect of this proposal.

Councillor McIntyre, as Ward Councillor, expressed his support in relation to the amended proposal.  
The Panel expressed general support in relation to the proposed amended scheme.

The Chair indicated that he was minded to approve the amended traffic regulation order, as detailed in 
the report.

Page 5



Traffic Advisory Panel – 1st November 2018 4
6. LYNTON ROAD, LOWRY DRIVE AND STATION ROAD, PENDLEBURY 

The Panel considered a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed objections that had been 
received in relation to a proposal to relax the waiting restrictions on Lynton Road and to introduce new 
waiting restrictions on Lowry Drive at the junction with Station Road in response to a request that had 
been made to the Swinton & Pendlebury Highways Task Group.  

A traffic management scheme was designed to remove some existing double yellow lines and 
introduce a No Waiting Monday to Friday 9.00am – 4.00pm on Lynton Road.  A scheme was also 
designed to introduce No Waiting at Any Time Traffic Regulation Order on Lowry Drive to cover the 
extents considered appropriate by the Highways Task Group, as indicated on Appendices 1 and 2 to 
the report.  The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting’ and ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions was legally advertised on 16th August 2018 for 21 days, during which time one objection 
was received in connection to the proposal for Lynton Road. Two objections were received in respect 
of the proposal for Lowry Drive during the consultation period plus one objection received after the 
consultation period.  A comment in support of the scheme on Lowry Drive was also submitted.  

Following consideration of the objections, officers agreed that a balance was required between 
visibility and parking for the local community and businesses.  It was decided that the restriction on 
Lowry Drive be changed from ‘No Waiting at any Time’ to ‘No Waiting’ Monday – Friday 7.00am – 
7.00pm. The new restriction would cover opening hours of the new Nursery and would keep the 
junction clear during the day when traffic volumes are higher and allow safe movement for vehicles 
coming to Lowry Drive and joining the traffic on Station Road. The restriction would also leave more of 
Lowry Drive unrestricted and after the operation hours so that residents, businesses and customers 
could find a place to park their vehicles.  It was therefore recommended that the ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ restriction on Lowry Drive be replaced by ‘No Waiting’ Monday – Friday 7.00am – 7.00pm and 
the restriction reduced on the north side of Lowry Drive to 10 metres from the junction with Station 
Road.  No changes were recommended to the proposed plan on Lynton Road.

A member of the public in attendance clarified the hours of operation of the traffic regulation order in 
respect of Lynton Road and expressed their support in relation to the proposed amended scheme.

The Panel expressed general support with regard to the proposed amended scheme.

The Chair indicated that he was minded to approve the implementation of the amended traffic 
regulation order as detailed in the report.

7. CITY OF SALFORD (ROOKE STREET, THORP STREET, LANSDALE STREET AND GILBERT 
STREET) (ONE WAY TRAFFIC AND ONE WAY TRAFFIC EXCEPT CYCLES) ORDER 2018 

The Panel considered a report of the Strategic Director Place which detailed an objection that had 
been received in relation to a proposal to introduce a permanent traffic regulation order designed in 
response to a request from United Utilities, after liaison with Urban Vision, following the completion of 
major waste water infrastructure work in the area.

The report stated that a temporary restriction had been in place since 2014 which was devised to 
assist safe access for construction vehicles; this consists of one way operation of a number of streets 
in the area. Even though the temporary Order has lapsed, the signs and road markings remain in 
place with the vast majority of drivers observing the restrictions. 
 
At the request of Urban Vision, United Utilities undertook a consultation exercise during which the 
majority of residents in the area affected by the temporary restrictions were supportive of retaining the 
temporary arrangement as they considered it removed the problematic ‘rat running’ traffic that the area 
experienced before the restrictions were introduced. 
 
 2

Page 6



Traffic Advisory Panel – 1st November 2018 5
TMU members have been formally consulted on the proposals for a permanent One Way Traffic 
Regulation Order on 6th November 2017 and there were no objections from emergency services or 
local councillors.  Comments were received from the City Council’s Infrastructure Team within which a 
request for the introduction of contraflow operation for cycles on Rooke Street and Thorp Street One 
way system was made to promote cycle penetration of the area.  All comments have been reviewed 
and any reasonable and justified amendments to proposals have been made in response, prior to legal 
advertising.  The traffic regulation order was advertised on 2nd August 2018 for 21 days, during which 
time one objection was received.  

The Panel noted the background information provided in the report, the detail of the objection that had 
been received and the response that had been provided.  

The Panel were advised that an additional email objecting to the proposed scheme had been received 
together with an email in support of the proposal.

Councillor Jolley informed the Panel that for many years, prior to the implementation of the temporary 
scheme, the area had been subject to rat running.  Although the temporary scheme had been put in 
place to manage construction traffic for the United Utilities work, it had also had the effect of greatly 
improving the rat running situation.  The survey at the end of the works had demonstrated local 
support for the scheme to continue and the Ward Councillors therefore support the recommendation of 
the report.

There were no members of the public in attendance at the meeting.

The Panel expressed general support regarding the proposed scheme.

The Chair indicated that he was minded to approve the implementation of the proposed scheme as 
advertised.

APPENDIX A – ATTENDEES

TRO LOCATION MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WARD COUNCILLORS

Chorley Road/Beech Street/Broom
Street/Ogden Street
Swinton

Tom Holmes*
Ray Buckley
D Galassi*
Paul Higham
James Dean*
Derek Sutton
Craig Holmes*
Daniel Heaney
Mark Riley*
Nigel Pedigrew
Robert Phillips*
Marlene Gilbert
Arthur Gilbert
John Ashton
Kerry Langley
Beverley Shawcross

Councillor Fletcher*

Lynton Road/Lowry Drive/Station 
Road
Pendlebury

Ashley Bould*
Marcia Finney

Rooke Street/Thorp Street/
Lansdale Street/Gilbert
Street
Eccles

Councillor Jolley*

* Indicates those who made representations to the Panel.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

17th January 2019
 

 
TITLE: Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook – Proposed waiting restrictions – TRO 2164 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Lead Member for Strategic Planning consider the contents of this report and 
the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to: 
 
Overrule the objections and introduce the amended scheme as detailed in this report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
A proposal has been put forward through the Worsley & Boothstown Community 
Committee to introduce a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ (double yellow lines) on both sides of Oriole Drive, at the junction with 
Newearth Road, and on Oriole Drive to just beyond its junction with Blackcap Close. 
 
The proposal intends to address concerns raised by the local community regarding 
parking by commuters which is restricting access on Oriole Drive, particularly at the 
junctions with Newearth Road, Firecrest Court, Goldcrest Court and Blackcap Close.   
 
The TRO to introduce the waiting restrictions was advertised on the 2nd August 2018 
for a period of 21 days and during that period received 4 objections.    
 
Following consideration of the objections, the members of the Highways Task Group 
have agreed that an amended scheme be proposed which will achieve the objective 
of providing safe access for vehicles and pedestrians, but will replace some of the ‘at 
any time’ parking restrictions with day time restrictions, thereby addressing some of 
the concerns expressed by residents. 
 
The new proposals were circulated to the 4 objectors, 2 of whom subsequently 
withdrew their objection, leaving 2 outstanding objections.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 2

 
Background 
 
A request has been received from Worsley and Boothstown Community Committee 
to provide a scheme on Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook to deal with parking problems on 
Oriole Drive predominantly caused by commuters using the Leigh-Salford-
Manchester Guided Busway. 
  
Complaints have been received from local residents, which are supported by site 
visits that vehicles are parking on both sides of Oriole Drive which is causing access 
and road safety problems.                                                                                                                            
 
Investigations including site visits at various times have observed parking occurring 
close to the junctions in the area, which is reducing visibility and access for 
pedestrians and vehicles. 
  
Therefore in order to improve safe vehicular access on Oriole Drive and at its 
junction with Newearth Road a parking scheme was designed to seek to introduce to 
waiting restrictions as shown on the attached plan and schedule. 
 
The TRO was advertised on the 2nd August 2018 for a period of 21 days and 
received 4 objections. The objections were predominantly regarding the loss of 
parking facilities for residents and their guests as a result of the proposed waiting 
restrictions.     
 
Following consideration of the objections received, the scheme as advertised was 
reviewed and an amended scheme was designed, which seeks to achieve the 
objective of providing safe access for pedestrians and vehicles at the main Oriole 
Drive/Newearth Road junction by maintain the proposed ‘No waiting at any time’ 
parking restrictions. 
 
It is proposed to amend the original scheme by providing day time restrictions ‘No 
waiting Mon to Friday 8am to 4pm’ on both sides from Firecrest Close to just beyond 
Blackcap Close, instead of the initially proposed ‘No waiting at any time restrictions. t 
is considered that there would be no issues with parking on this section outside these 
times, and it will allow a greater flexibility for parking by residents and their guests.    
 
The Members of the Highways Task Group were consulted and support the 
introduction of the amended scheme. 
 
The new proposals were circulated to the 4 objectors, two of whom subsequently 
withdrew their objection, leaving 2 outstanding objections.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 3

Proposals (Original): 
Introduction of:  No waiting at any time Restrictions 
   
Oriole Drive Both sides From its junction with 

Newearth Road to a 
point 10 metres west of 
its junction with 
Blackcap Close 

Newearth Road South east side From its junction with 
Oriole Drive in a south 
easterly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Newearth Road North west side From its junction with 
the Oriole Drive in a 
north westerly direction 
for a distance of 8 
metres. 
 

 
 
Proposals (Amended scheme following advertisement and consideration of 
objections)  
 
Introduction of: 
 
No waiting at any time 
 
   
Newearth Road South east side From its junction with 

Oriole Drive in a south 
easterly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Newearth Road North west side From its junction with the 
Oriole Drive in a north 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Oriole Drive North west side From its junction with 
Newearth Road to its 
junction with the north 
eastern kerbline of 
Firecrest Court.  

Oriole Drive South east side From its junction with  
Newearth Road to its 
junction with north east 
kerbline of Goldcrest 
Close 

 

Page 11



 

 4

Introduction of: 
 
No waiting Monday to Friday 10am-4pm 
 
Oriole Drive North west side From its junction with 

Firecrest Close in a 
south westerly direction 
for a distance of 63 
metres.  

Oriole Drive South east side From its junction with   
Goldcrest Close to a 
point 10 metres west 
from its junction with 
Blackcap Close 

 
Consideration of Objections 
 
The following table summarises the general points raised by the original 4 objections 
and provides a response:  
 
OBJECTION  RESPONSE 
Objector 1 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests to be able to park. 
Objection withdrawn following 
changes to the advertised 
scheme. 

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newerath Road junction (which previously was 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 

Objector 2 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests/visitors to be able 
to park. It was considered that 
there was no need for such 
extensive parking restrictions.  

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newerath Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 5

 
Objector 3 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests/visitors to be able 
to park. Many residents have 
multiple vehicles and thus need to 
park on street. 
 
It was mentioned that the 
proposals may transfer parking 
into other nearby areas. 
 
The objector asked whether 
residents parking could be 
introduced. 

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newearth Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during less busy times. 
 
It is accepted that there may be transference of 
parking, but given the short length of the 
restrictions this will be low. However, as with all 
waiting restriction schemes the effects will be 
monitored and appropriate action taken if 
deemed necessary in the future. 
 
Residents in the area have off street parking 
facilities and hence a resident’s only parking 
scheme would not be justified under the current 
criteria.   
 

Objector 4 –  
Will restrict parking facilities for 
residents and visitors/workmen 
etc. 
 
Will transfer parking to other close 
by areas 
 
The objector asked whether 
residents parking could be 
introduced?. 
 
Objection withdrawn following 
changes to the advertised 
scheme. 
 

 
Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newearth Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 
 
It is accepted that there may be transference of 
parking, but given the short length of the 
restrictions this will be low. However, as with all 
waiting restriction schemes the effects will be 
monitored and appropriate action taken if 
deemed necessary in the future. 
 
Residents in the area have off street parking 

Page 13



 

 6

facilities and hence a resident’s only parking 
scheme would not be justified under the current 
criteria.   
 

 
The objection emails are attached to this report (Including Objections 1 and 4 which 
has been subsequently withdrawn). 
 
Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel 
The matter is to be considered at a meeting on the 17th January 2019. The objectors 
have been informed of the date and time of the meeting should they wish to attend.  
 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that following consideration of the objections received that the 
amended scheme be introduced. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
Implementation of parking restrictions would improve access for vehicles and 
pedestrians; however there is a risk that it will generate parking problems for local 
residents who may be unable to park outside or near to their homes. All efforts have 
been made to reduce the impact on local parking while designing the restrictions and 
the amended restrictions are shorter which will have a lesser impact on parking for 
residents. If the restrictions do not go in, there is a risk of continued access issues for 
vehicles and pedestrians. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not applicable  

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
The costs are to be met from the Block 3 Highways Capital allocation of the Worsley 
& Boothstown devolved budget from the 2017/18 financial year.  

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not applicable  
 

Page 14



 

 7

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A. 
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None.

 
  
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Ashton TEL NO: 0161 779 4912  
 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Boothstown & Ellenbrook 
 
 
 
 
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 
 
 

Page 15



Objections Received (Redacted) 

Objection 1(subsequently withdrawn after scheme amendment) 

 

Date: 20 August 2018 at 12:42:31 BST 

To:  

Subject: Parking Restriction Proposal on Oriole Drive 

Dear Councillor Garrido 

 

Many Thanks for your time just now. Following on from the conversation I am looking for 

confirmation of the restrictions on Oriole Drive and in particular the parking access in front of 

number 1 and number 3. 

 

At present on the Salford City council website the plan is to introduce double yellow line parking 

restriction all the way up to a point on Oriole, this includes numbers 1 and 3. Up to Blackchat Close. 

 

In the surrounding Streets in particular where the Ellenbrook school is, there are no waiting 

restrictions in place and also at the Co-op there is no parking Monday to Friday 10am – 4pm, I also 

feel double yellow lines to a certain point may drive Traffics further onto Oriole in order to park. 

Residents of Oriole would find it difficult to park when having for example work done on a property 

and placing a skip on a drive.  

 

Instead of double yellow lines, I would like to suggest parking restrictions (unless for tenants with 

permits provided) as above, this would mean bus users wouldn’t be able to leave cars all day to 

commute to Manchester. 

 

Once again thanks for your time on this matter 

 

Kind Regards 

 

Andy Mather 

Number 1, Oriole Drive, Worsley 

 

Page 16



Objection 2 

 

On Wednesday, 15 August 2018 14:14:51 UTC+1, Paul Heathcote wrote: 

Sirs,  

 

As the householder of 2 Oriole Drive I object to the plan to make the  

road no waiting at any time outside my house, which would of necessity  

cause me much disruption.  

 

While the incidence of parking in Oriole has increased since the  

implementatin of the guided busway, it rarely reaches down as far as my  

house.   There is no need for  blanket nan as regulation of parking  

could be done by a residents only scheme, or even a time limted scheme.  

 

Sincerely  

 

Paul Heathcote  

 

Objection 3 

 

 

On Saturday, 18 August 2018 18:41:54 UTC+1, john comerford wrote: 

To whom it may concern, 

 

Me and my family live at No.3 Oriole Drive where there is a proposal to put double yellow lines outside our 
home. 

 

We strongly object to this. We are a family of 4. Myself, Carol and two grown up children. We have 3 cars 
and it will soon be 4 when my son passes his test. 

We just about struggle to get 2 cars on the drive. My daughter parks on the road in a sensible manner 
without blocking traffic or pedestrians otherwise she would get told off by me. 

 

Both Carol and my daughter work for the NHS and do funny hours. I could imagine the nightmare scenario 
of having to wake up Carol or my daugher and say can you move your car I'm going out. I work from home 
for a portion of the week with the occasional visit from my clients. 

 

Page 17



If we had double yellows where would my daughter and possibly son park their cars? Where would my 
clients park their cars? Not to mention visits from family and friends where would they park. God help the 
grandparents.  

 

They would end up parking further into the estate outside somebody else's home. Now that's not nice. 

 

Couldn't we have proper signage like 'residents parking only' or maybe a permit system if worst comes to 
the worst. 

 

This is killing us all with worry. I've suffered from severe depression in the past and I'm sick with worry. I 
can't eat but I'm drinking and for the first time in many years I thought about buying a packet of cigarettes. 

 

Also the effect on the resale value of the property will also be significant and it will knock 10s of thousands 
off our home value and it's the only thing I can pass on to my kids. Yet we've done nothing wrong. 

 

It seems like we are the ones who are paying the price for other people's selfishness when it should be 
them paying the price. All they will do is park further into the estate where the yellow lines end if yellow 
lines are done. It will only end in tears for the whole neighbourhood. 

 

Please can you please help us?   I can't sleep and I can't eat and I am massively suffering from stress over 
this. I dear I'm heading for a dark place. 

 

My name is John Comerford who lives at No.3 Oriole drive. My telephone no. is 07876 660994 

 

Everything I've written down is honest and truthful so please can you be understanding in our situation and 
just give us residents permits with some signage at the road entrance. That way residents are not suffering 
yet those who are a bit selfish will have to think again. 

 

Kind regards 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



Objection 4 (subsequently withdrawn after scheme amendment) 

        1 Oriole Drive 

          Ellenbrook 

          Worsley 

          Manchester 

          M28 7XF 

 

          20.8.18 

 

Dear Sirs, 

 

Objection - reference L/TGA/OUT1093/648 

 

I write in relation to the proposed order issued by Salford City Council under the Road Traffic 

Regulation Act 1984 – reference L/TGA/OUT1093/648 regarding Oriole Drive and Newearth Road. 

My partner and I reside at 1 Oriole Drive and the proposal is for the area directly in front and the 

side corner of our property to be subject parking restrictions via double yellow lines which will 

significantly restrict access the property for us as residents but also for visitors, deliveries and 

workmen etc.   

Our understanding is that the proposals have been drawn up as a mechanism to address the issue of 

non-residents using Oriole Drive to park their cars in order to catch the Guided Bus service from 

Newearth Road to Manchester.  The use of Oriole Drive for parking is a significant cause of 

inconvenience and frustration to residents, visitors and people making deliveries to homes on the 

development. In addition, the parking of cars by bus users represents a significant safety risk on a 

development where there are many families with children. Whilst applauding and indeed welcoming 

efforts of Councillors and Salford City Council to address the issue of parking by non-residential bus 

users, we have a number of concerns; 

 

1. The proposals fail to address the principal issue of Oriole Drive being used for parking by 

non-residential bus users. 

 As it stands the proposals will prevent non-residential bus users from parking along a certain  

part of Oriole Drive but will not prevent them from parking on Oriole Drive further into the 

development (close to Stonechat Close and Repoll Close). This stretch of Oriole Drive is a 

situated on a bend with the potential to present a safety risk whilst also causing significant 

inconvenience to all residents on the development. As such, the proposals do not appear to 

address the issue to the fullest. Indeed, the proposals appear designed to create a scenario 

which may encourage the issue to be relocated from one area of Oriole Drive to another. 

Page 19



Question – how will the proposals prevent bus users from parking further into the 

development thereby relocating the problem from one area of Oriole Drive to another?   

 

2. The proposals will exacerbate the parking issue. 

 The proposals will prevent residents of 1 and 3 Oriole Drive and visitors, workmen and 

delivery people to these residences from parking outside of these properties.  As such, 

residents, visitors, workmen and delivery people to 1 and 3 Oriole Drive  will be forced to 

park further into the development causing significant inconvenience to other residents of 

Oriole Drive and neighbouring closes whilst also posing a safety risk. 

 Furthermore, given that the proposals will not prevent bus users from parking further into 

the development; our concern is that the proposals will create an environment for increased 

parking congestion further along Oriole Drive - caused by a combination of residents, 

visitors, workmen to 1 and 3 Oriole Drive and non-residential bus users. All things being 

equal, rather than alleviating the situation, this will compound the issue by creating 

residential demand for on street parking further along Oriole Drive in addition to prospective 

parking by non-residential bus users.  

Question – where should residents, visitors, workmen etc to numbers 1 and 3 Oriole Drive 

park given the proposals to restrict parking directly outside of these properties? 

Question – what consideration has been given to the impact of the proposals on the 

residents of 1 and 3 Oriole Drive? 

 

3. The proposals will disadvantage the residents of 1 and 3 Oriole Drive and neighbouring 

closes.  

 As outlined previously, the proposals will significantly restrict access to 1 and 3 Oriole Drive 

which will force residents, visitors etc to these properties to park further along Oriole Drive 

or in neighbouring closes. Our concern is that, all things being equal, this will present us with 

no option but to cause significant inconvenience to our neighbours, something that we 

would otherwise wholeheartedly seek to avoid. On this basis, our feeling is that the 

residents of 1 and 3 Oriole Drive are being penalised as a consequence of actions 

undertaken by non-resident bus users.  

 Question – how do the proposals meet Mayor Paul Dennett’s objective of “creating a city 

committed to equalities and fairness for all”? 

 

In summary, whilst welcoming the willingness to address the issue of Oriole Drive being used for 

parking by non-residential bus users, we believe that the proposal, as presented, is unlikely to 

provide a long term sustainable solution to the problem and could actually exacerbate the parking 

situation for residents Rather, we believe that there are other potential solutions that should be 

considered which would address the issue of non-residential parking by bus users whilst retaining 

the ability for residents to park on Oriole Drive outside or adjacent to their properties. Our 

suggestions are as follows; 

Page 20



1 The introduction of a scheme to restrict parking along Oriole Drive between 10am and 4pm 

which would prevent parking by non-residential bus users travelling to work. Precedent 

exists here as similar schemes are in use in the area. 

 

2 A residential permit scheme for residents on the development which would prevent parking 

by non-residential bus users whilst maintaining the status quo for all residents, visitors etc. 

 

3 Restricted parking part way along Oriole Drive combined with a permit scheme for residents 

of 1 and 3 Oriole Drive with a view to retaining the ability for residents, visitors etc. to park 

outside these properties.  

 

Given the current situation, we feel that we have no option but to object to the proposal, specifically 

in relation to the areas surrounding 1 Oriole Drive. Should double yellow lines be introduced around 

our property, we will have no option but to park either further along Oriole Drive or in neighbouring 

closes, a situation which will cause significant inconvenience to ourselves and our neighbours. We 

appreciate Salford City Council’s efforts to date but feel that the current proposal whilst seeking to 

address the physical problem, fails to consider the impact of the proposals on residents and the 

wider community.  

I would welcome your response in relation to the questions raised in this letter and look forward to 

hearing from you in due course.  

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

Allison Brierley 

 

 

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 19 
 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

TRAFFIC ADVISORY PANEL 
 

17th January 2019 
 

 
TITLE: CITY OF SALFORD (DARWELL AVENUE, KIRKMAN AVENUE AND 
BARTON ROAD, BARTON) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2018 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to: 
 

Approve the amended Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) as detailed in this report. 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 
A request has been made to the Eccles Highways Task Group to introduce road 
safety measures on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road in Barton, Eccles. It is proposed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restriction to improve road safety in the area. 
 
A traffic management scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ restriction on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road. These waiting restrictions are indicated on the attached Appendix 1 and 2. 
 
The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions was 
legally advertised on 15th November 2018 for 21 days, during that time 5 objections 
have been received in connection to the proposal. 4 of them have been resolved, one 
objection was maintained. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 19 
 

Background  
 
A request has been received from the Eccles Community Committee to introduce road 
safety measures on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road in Barton, Eccles. It is proposed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction 
to improve road safety in the area. 
 
It was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on 
Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road. 
 
Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue are two way residential streets. Both streets are no 
through roads. There are unrestricted waiting bays on Barton Road opposite Kirkman 
Avenue and Darwell Avenue. Cars are parking close to the junctions. This inconsiderate 
parking causes difficulties for turning traffic at the junction and for pedestrians to cross. 
 
To address the problems it was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions at Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road. 
These restrictions are detailed in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 
 
The scheme was consulted upon by the Traffic Management Unit, local councillors and 
emergency services on 6th August 2018. 
 
The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 15th November 2018, for 21 days 
to 7th December 2018. Letters were sent out to premises directly affected by restrictions 
(reproduced in Appendix 3). During this period five objections were received. 
 
The Objections 
 
The first objection is reproduced at Appendix 4. The objection is made by local resident. 
The resident is objecting to the scheme because proposal would remove all the parking 
around his property. The resident is concerned that his property will be devalued. Also 
the resident is pointing that the area was not notified of the change of use of one of the 
dwellings to make it 6 persons House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). The resident feels 
that this change has worsened parking problems on the street. Also the resident quoted 
an e-mail from Project Manager – Physical Regeneration at Salford City Council where 
he advised that ‘there will be no parking restrictions outside your house so you will still be 
able to park outside your house’. This e-mail was sent in connection to the road 
narrowing to the path along the Bridgewater Canal. 
 
The change of use from dwelling to 6 persons HMO did not need planning permission 
hence no planning consultations were carried out. 
 
The resident was advised that the current proposal is not connected to the road 
narrowing. The restrictions are proposed to increase visibility at the junctions both for 
vehicles and pedestrians due to safety concerns.  
 
However, due to the concerns raised in the objection and that there are difficulties for 
residents to park Urban Vision engineers decided to lessen the restrictions at both 
junctions to 5 metres.  
 

Page 26



Page 3 of 19 
 

This has been conveyed to the objector who wishes to maintain his objection on the 
same grounds that he thinks narrowing the road caused problem and that the Council 
‘lied’ about the ability to park in front of his property. 
 
The resident was advised that according to the Highway Code there should be no 
parking within 10 metres of the junction and that narrowing the road is not connected to 
the visibility issues as they may occur on wider roads if inconsiderate parking takes 
place. The resident was advised that the scheme will be considered by the Traffic 
Advisory Panel. 
 
The second objection is reproduced in Appendix 5. The objection is made by local 
resident. The objector firstly visited Salford City Council to talk with the scheme engineer 
about why restrictions are introduced; the objector was advised to write his objection to 
the legal. In the e-mail the objector feels it is unreasonable to introduce the restrictions 
as there are problems with finding parking places due to a house converted to flats. Also 
the resident pointed that when works were carried out on the Bridgewater Canal 
residents were told that there will be no parking restrictions on this road. 
 
The resident was advised that the new proposal is not connected to the previous works 
on the Bridgewater Canal. However considering matter that there are difficulties for 
residents to park Urban Vision engineers agreed to lessen the restrictions to 5 metres on 
both junctions. After this was conveyed to the objector, this objector decided to withdraw 
the objection. 
 
The third objection is reproduced in Appendix 6 and is made by local resident. The 
objector’s ground is based on a loss of parking spaces in the area due to narrowed road 
and Council’s permission to convert one of houses into 6 persons HMO. 
 
The resident was informed that the scheme’s extents are now 5 metres at both junctions. 
With regards to that the resident withdrew the objection. 
 
The fourth objection is reproduced in Appendix 7. The objection is made by local 
resident. The objector’s view is that restrictions on Barton Road are understandable 
however restrictions on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue are not needed and they 
will make parking problems even worse. Also the residents said that parking problem has 
got worse due to Council’s approvals for converting houses into flats. 
 
The objector was advised that the house conversion did not need planning consent. The 
objector was informed that the restrictions have been changed to the 5 metres on both 
junctions. With regards to that the resident decided to withdraw the objection. 
 
The fifth objection is reproduced in Appendix 8. The objection is made by local resident. 
The objector oppose to the 10 metres plan on Darwell Avenue as that will cause more 
parking problems on already congested street. 
 
The resident was advised that the plan is now 5 metres on both junctions an the resident 
has now withdrawn the objection. 
 
  

Page 27



Page 4 of 19 
 

Consideration of the Objection 
 
Urban Vision Engineers agree that a balance between visibility and parking for the local 
community and businesses has to be made.  
 
After considering the objections Urban Vision decided to change length of ‘No Waiting at 
Any Time’ restrictions on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with 
Barton Road to 5 metres on each side. 
 
Therefore, officers recommend that the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions should be 
shortened to help pedestrians and vehicles with the visibility and to leave more 
unrestricted area for residents to park.  
 
The proposed Legal Schedule and plan for the modified TRO are shown at Appendix 9 
and 10. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the TRO be brought into effect in the amended form scheduled at 
Appendix 9 and 10 hereto. 
 
Appendix: 

1. Schedule as advertised 
2. Plan as advertised 
3. Letter sent to residents 
4. Objection 1 
5. Objection 2 
6. Objection 3 
7. Objection 4 
8. Objection 5 
9. Revised TRO schedule 
10. Revised TRO plan  

Page 28



Page 5 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 1 – SCHEDULE AS ADVERTISED 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
Introduction of:  
 
‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restrictions 
 
 

 
Darwell Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
Barton Road 

 

 
South west side from a point 10 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Darwell Avenue to a point 10 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Darwell Avenue. 
 
South west side from a point 10 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Kirkman Avenue to a point 10 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Kirkman Avenue. 
 

 
Kirkman Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
 

Page 29



 

Page 6 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 2 – PLAN AS ADVERTISED 

 

P
age 30



 

Page 7 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 3 – LETTER SENT TO RESIDENTS 
 
 
 
 
15th November 2018 
 

 
    
Subject:  

KIRKMAN AVENUE, DARWELL AVENUE, BARTON ROAD – ‘NO WAITING AT ANY TIME’ 

RESTRICTION 

   
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
A request has been received from Eccles Community Committee to propose new waiting 
restrictions on Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and Barton Road. 
 
It is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Kirkman 
Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road as outlined in the attached plan. 
 
A copy of the proposed Order, a plan of the area and statement of the Council's reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be examined at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Rd, Swinton, 
M27 5DA, 8.30 am – 4.30 pm Monday to Friday. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/.  
 
If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in 
writing to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor: phlegal@manchester.gov.uk or PO BOX 532, Town Hall, 
Manchester, M60 2LA, by the 7th December 2018  quoting ref PSH/OUT1093/683. 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

Page 8 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 4 – OBJECTION 1 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E -MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
(…) 

 

I have received the proposals for the no waiting at any time restriction for kirkman, darrell 

and barton road. I would strongly like to oppose this. 

 

[…] your proposals would remove all the parking […]. Which in itself is wrong but 

[…expressed need in…] assistance getting out the car and into our home. 

 

There have been 2 major developments on Barton road.  

 

The first was back in 2015 when the council decided to relay barton road and it's proportions 

for development of the canal. The narrowing of the road concerned me I explicitly asked the 

council if this would cause a restriction to parking outside of my property and was told no. 

(email from salford council below) before the works to the road were completed the council 

without prior notice amended the plans and put a lowered kerb crossing outside my house. I 

asked if I can still park outside my house by the onsite representative and was told yes only 

for the council to then impose parking fines for any vehicle parking near the crossing. 

Therefore removing the ability to park at the front of my property. 

 

 

[…] - This property at the start of 2018 was changed into a HMO (House of Multiple 

Occupancy) Neighbours were not notified of the change of purpose of the dwelling until 

after the property had had significant structural change to make it a 6 person hmo. All of the 

tenants have vehicles which has made the parking on Barton and Darwell significantly more 

difficult. When asked the council said no planing was required for this change of purpose. 

 

 

So today to be told that you plan to take parking away […] and therefore further devalue my 

home is infuriating. 

 

Surely a better solution would be to permit the zones so that only residents can park most 

local areas have such a scheme in place and have 2 permits per household with additional 

available at a cost.  

 

Please can you let me know how I can formally say no I object to these plans as I am am sure 

my fellow residents would also do. 

 

And as the council has previously lied to me about parking (below) I am sure you can 

appreciate my concerns. 

 

 

Regards 

 

Page 32



 

Page 9 of 19 
 

[… Quoted e-mail] 
[…] Thank you for attending the consultation session on Monday night. 

I said I would get back to you with regards to the parking situation outside of your house once the 

road has been narrowed.  

I’ve spoken with the Highway Design Engineer for the scheme and he has confirmed the following: 

• The road width currently outside your house is 11.1 metres 

• This will be narrowed to 7.3 metres with the ‘build outs’ 

• In addition to this the pavement outside your house is 2.8 metres wide 

• The average car width in the UK is between 1.5 metres to 1.8metres wide and the average 

lorry and bus width is 2.55 metres 

There will be no parking restrictions outside your house so you will still be able to park outside your 

house. There will be ample space for two cars (one parked and one moving) to pass each other in the 

lane closest to your house. However, it would probably be wise to park slightly encroaching on the 

pavement in the future to allow lorries and buses to pass. 

As discussed on Monday we are trying to best accommodate as many people’s concerns as we can 

and we feel this is the best solution to achieve a shared pedestrian and cycle route on the canal 

towpath, provide replacement tree planting for those taken out on the towpath and to try and 

alleviate some of the wider parking issues that there is currently on Barton Road. 

If you want to discuss this further please feel free to give me a call any time. 

[…] 

Regards 

 
Response  sent by e -mail on 22.11.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
With regards to e-mail which you quoted – this proposal is not connected to works on 
Barton Road. We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles 
joining the traffic at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised 
this scheme which is now under consultations. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
 
 
E-mail sent on 07.12.2018 
 
Good Morning, 
 
I am writing to inform you that today the objection will end. I would really appreciate if 
you could confirm either you have no objections to the new proposal (attached again) 
or do you wish to maintain your objection. 

Page 33



 

Page 10 of 19 
 

 
Any questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
Objector – response from 16.12.2018  
Yes I maintain my objection your proposal is an improvement but still creates issues. 

 

I am surprised by the councils view that  

With regards to e-mail which you quoted – this proposal is not connected to works on Barton Road. 

We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic at both 

junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme which is now under 

consultations. 

 

 

I would have said that they were directly related as the council narrowed the road which is the root 

cause of the problem and as such the council lied to me about my ability to park […], and blatantly 

disregarded the fact that the road would be too narrow despite being told this by residents at the 

time. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 34



 

Page 11 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 5 – OBJECTION 2  
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
Following my recent meeting with […] regarding the above, as requested, I would like 
to object to part of the proposals referenced above. I understand why parking 
restrictions in Kirkman avenue and Darwell avenue have been suggested but cannot 
understand why this has been applied to Barton Road. Residents at […] all have 
cars. Also, […] has just been converted to 6 bed sits( hence possibly 6 more cars). It 
is totally unreasonable that these restrictions are introduced. When work in the area 
on Barton road was carried out we were category told there would be no parking 
restrictions on this road. 
Parking in this area is difficult enough and these changes will make matters much 
worse. Please consider the situation and the community involved, 
Response  sent by e-mail on 22.11.2018   
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
Just to clarify – this proposal is not connected to works on Barton Road. We have 
received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic at both 
junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme which is now 
under consultation. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
[…] 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
[Drawing attached]  
 
Objector 26.11.2018  
Thank you for considering my objection. I understand the reasons for the parking 
alterations mentioned. Based on this information, on safety grounds, I do not object 
to the 5 metre restriction. It would have been good to have no restriction on barton 
road but I agree this would not solve the problem highlighted 
 
  

Page 35



 

Page 12 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 6 – OBJECTION 3 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
I am e-mailing to raise my objections to the planned vehicle waiting restrictions on 
Darwell Ave, Kirkman Ave and Barton Rd. 
I am aware that now when properties are built provision is made for parking 2 
vehicles at each property. The houses on Darwell and Kirkman Avenue and Barton 
Road were built in the early 1900's when residents did not own vehicles. The area in 
front of each terraced house can accommodate one small car and when we 
purchased our property on […], this space was adequate for most residents. 
However, it has now become the norm for each adult in a household to own a car 
and many of the properties on the avenue need to accommodate 2, if not 3, vehicles. 
Parking on the avenue is difficult and most evenings both sides of the road are full 
with no free spaces. This has recently been compounded by the councils approval to 
convert one of the houses on Barton Road to 6 bedsits, with no provision for the 
extra vehicles this has produced, many of which park at the top of the avenue where 
the restrictions will be enforced. Whilst I can appreciate the safety concerns this 
raises, I feel the suggested proposals will be unworkable for the residents of Darwell 
Avenue.  
The restrictions would mean the loss of at least 10 parking spaces in the area, with 
no proposals as to where these vehicles can move to. Although there is some space 
on the canal side of Barton Road this is not adequate to contain the volume of 
vehicles that would be left without space to park. It would also mean that elderly 
residents or those with young children may have to park away from their home and 
cross a busy main road or have a long walk back to their house. Unless the council 
can provide alternative parking spaces to compensate for the space lost by the 
restrictions, I feel that the proposal is unworkable and will cause distress to the 
residents of the areas involved.  
I would be grateful if you could consider my objections before the proposal is 
approved. 
Thank you 
Response  sent by e -mail on 22.11.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
[Drawing attached] 

Page 36



 

Page 13 of 19 
 

Objector  25.11.2018 
Thank you for your timely response to my email.  
Having looked at your attachment with the revised plan of a 5 metre restriction I feel 
this is an acceptable compromise. 
I therefore, have no further objections to the proposal. 
Many thanks for addressing my concerns, 
 
 
 
  

Page 37



 

Page 14 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 7 – OBJECTION 4 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 30.11.2018 
Objector  
Morning 
I’m writing regarding the proposed no waiting time on Barton Road/Darwell 
Avenue/Kirkman Avenue. 
I live […] and I understand the proposal to have a no waiting time policy for Barton 
Road because of the new road layout that has recently been completed as the road 
is now a lot narrower but I’m afraid  
That making either Darwell or Kirkman for 10 metres at the top down a no waiting 
area is in complete disregard to all residents. Both Kirkman and Darwell struggle as it 
is to find parking and the top ends of both are used 
To the fullest every night. 
Not only that our local councils have made it impossible to park in most places 
around the Barton area as they are allowing companies to turn the larger houses into 
6 bedsits and we have one right at the top of 
Darwell. Maybe this should also been looked at by the local councils as more and 
more are being converted without any adequate parking spaces being available. 
Where are these people supposed to park? There is nowhere and  
now you are taking away even more spaces, you need to rethink this and all the cars 
that currently park in the Barton road area are going to need to find spaces too and 
the top end of Darwell & Kirkman are going to be needed. 
[…] 
Thanks in advance 
Response  sent by e -mail on 03.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
I have already received objections to the scheme which is why different lengths are 
now proposed – see attached drawing, both junctions dropped down to 5 metres. 
 
With regards to house conversion – please be advised that they might not need 
planning consent. 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
Objector  04.12.2018 
Morning 
 
I fully understand the road at the top being done this way but if the road layout would 
have been done a little better it might not have been as bad, because of the grass 
verges that come out a little too far especially on the corner 
At the top of Darwell. It is also causing havoc because its bringing the ducks and 

Page 38



 

Page 15 of 19 
 

geese out onto the road which they have never done as much since the new layout. 
As far as the house conversion these are all part of the urban vision Partnership and 
if as many houses are being allowed to be converted without planning permission 
then there should be something that stipulates that 
They should be adequate parking for them, thanks and regards 
 
Response  sent by e -mail on 04.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The grass verge is not the problem, the parking at the junction is obstructing visibility 
which is why double yellows are proposed. I would appreciate if you can confirm do 
you wish to maintain your objection to the scheme or withdraw it. 
 
In terms of ducks and geese please fill the attached Highways Devolved Budget 
form, for consideration of putting warning signs. 
 
Regarding house conversions we are aware of problems and Salford City Council 
made some steps towards resolving that – you can read more online, please see link 
below. 
 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-regeneration/planning-advice/ 
 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Form attached] 
Objector  04.12.2018 
As long as no more than 5 meters on either side going down Darwell and Kirkman 
then it wouldn’t cause too much of a problem, regards 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

Page 16 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 8 – OBJECTION 5 
 

OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 30.11.2018 
Objector  
I wish to object to the proposed plan of no waiting at any time on Darwell Avenue.  
 
Although I agree that this restriction is required on Barton Road as vehicles parked 
there obstruct the view of road users turning out or into Darwell Avenue I am 
however objecting to the Darwell Avenue plan of 10 metres. I don't think it's 
necessary on Darwell Avenue and if implemented will cause major inconvenience to 
residents on the Avenue. […] the majority of residents are multiple car/van owners 
who enjoy parking outside their own home. Such a restriction as this would mean 
residents of the houses closer to Barton Road parking further down the Avenue thus 
causing an already tight and narrow street with minimal parking currently to suffer 
fewer parking spaces outside their own homes. 
 
Please reconsider this proposal and the wishes of the majority of residents on the 
Avenue. 
Response  sent by e -mail on 03.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
I have already received objections to the scheme which is why different lengths are 
now proposed – see attached drawing, both junctions dropped down to 5 metres. 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
Objector  03.12.2018 
Thank you for your quick response.  
 
I've looked at the revised plan of 5 metres on Darwell Avenue and feel that this is a 
better proposal. 
 
If this plan is implemented then I'm happy to retract my objection. Please keep me 
informed of any changes and the final decision. 

 

Page 40



 

Page 17 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 9 – REVISED TRO SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
Introduction of:  
 
‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restrictions 
 
 

 
Darwell Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 5 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
Barton Road 

 

 
South west side from a point 5 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Darwell Avenue to a point 5 metres south east 
from the extended south eastern kerbline of Darwell Avenue. 
 
South west side from a point 5 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Kirkman Avenue to a point 5 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Kirkman Avenue. 
 

 
Kirkman Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 5 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

Page 41



 

Page 18 of 19 
 

APPENDIX 10 – REVISED TRO PLAN 

P
age 42



 

Page 19 of 19 
 

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel  
 
The matter is to be considered at a meeting on 17th January 2019. The objector has 
been informed of the date of the meeting to enable them to attend. 
 
Recommendation  
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents 
of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to 
introduce amended Traffic Regulation Order as set out in this report.

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 
N/A 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
Implementation of the restrictions would decrease the risk of collisions and improve 
access. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   N/A 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244 
 
There are no procurement implications. 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko         TEL NO: 0161 779 6097 
 
WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Barton 
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meetings held on 6th December and 1st November 2018.
	TAP Minutes 011118

	4 Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook - Proposed Waiting Restrictions - TRO 2164.
	Report
	Objections
	Plan - Advertised Scheme
	Plan - Amended Scheme

	5 Darwell Avenue, Kirkman Avenue and Barton Road, Barton.

